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The following change(s) in the Request for Proposal Documents are effective immediately. 

This Addendum forms part of the Contract Documents. 

Item numbering format: [Addendum #] . [Item #] 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION       ACTION 

 

Question 3.1  
Will the City permit the use of cover sheets for each section, and if so, exclude it 
from the page count? 

 
Response 3.1 
 
Yes, the City allows the use of cover sheets for each individual section, and they will be 
excluded from the page count. 

 
 
Question 3.2 
Addendum #1, Q&A 1.10 notes the requirement of four (4) additional reference 
projects (must be different to projects listed in Section B) that demonstrate the 
Proponent’s corporate experience on projects of similar scale and magnitude. 
What is the difference between the projects required for Section B and Section D? 
Section B lists several criteria to address for the projects and limits the content to 
two pages per project. Is the City looking for a simple listing of projects for 
Section D? Additionally, can the City confirm that the projects listed in Section B 
are utilized as the Proponent’s client references? 
 
Response 3.2 
 
In Section D, it is recommended to provide a brief description of the Proponent's 
qualifications, highlight their relevant experience, and showcase their ability to meet the 
project's requirements. While project details are not necessary for Section D, the 
Proponent can emphasize key projects which are not mentioned in Section B that 
demonstrate their capabilities and expertise. These projects should be of a similar size 
and scope and can be summarized. 
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The City confirms that the project listed in Section B can be utilized as a proponent’s client 
reference. 
 
Question 3.3 
The Cost Submission Form in Appendix A details the number and depth of 
boreholes to drill for the geotechnical investigation in items 2.2 and 2.3.  However, 
item C.1. in Appendix G (Supplementary Scope of Work Details) indicates to 
“identify the recommended total number of boreholes…”  Should the boreholes 
requested in Appendix A therefore be costed or the total number (and depth) of 
boreholes that would be recommended for this project? 
 
Response 3.3 
 

Provide pricing for the boreholes indicated in Appendix A. It is important to consider the 

specified number and depth of boreholes mentioned in the appendix. However, it should 

be noted that during the investigation and design phase, the consultant may recommend 

further boreholes and the pricing for those additional boreholes will be negotiated at that 

time. 

 
Questions 3.4 
The scopes of work per phase described in section 6 do not align with the cost 
submission form (Page 49), how would you like the tasks displayed in the 
schedule? 
For example, Phase 1 in Section 6 has the investigations (topo, geotechnical…) 
listed, but the same investigations are listed under Phase 2 in the cost form. 
 
Response 3.4 
 
Please note that the intention is to commence (and/or complete where possible) 
investigations in Phase I and complete reporting in Phase II. Please refer to the RFP 
clarifications and revision section to see changes in the Cost Submission form.  
 

 
Question 3.5 
Is the intent to remove the monitoring wells at the completion of the geotechnical 
investigation when the drilling equipment is removed from the site or are the 
wells required to be left on site for any longer duration before being removed? 
 
Response 3.5 
The monitoring wells are intended to be removed upon conclusion of the geotechnical 

investigations and are the Consultant’s responsibility to complete their removal. 
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Question 3.6 
Is the intent to leave the thermistors installed onsite indefinitely and the potential 
removal is outside of this scope? 
 
Response 3.6 
 

The thermistors are intended to be removed after installation, and it is the Consultant's 

responsibility to complete their removal. 

 

 
Question 3.7 
Can you provide additional detail on the expectations for the granular material 
and local source identification, with respect to any additional background work 
for alternate sources, subsurface investigation expectations, and any permitting 
that has been completed?  

 

Response 3.7 
 

As described in the EXP feasibility study, for the selected reservoir site the intent will be 

to utilize native soils and bedrock rock from excavating activities for construction of the 

reservoir embankments. However, it is anticipated that a portion of the material will be 

unsuitable and require removal or further processing or the possibility that suitable fill from 

an alternate source will be required. The Consultant will need to provide sufficient 

allowance for their geotechnical team to review any existing aerial, topographic, and/or 

geologic mapping of the area including field site visits to determine if suitable borrow 

sources can be identified within a reasonable distance from the reservoir location noting 

the economy of materials and any haul road construction will have a significant effect on 

design approach and construction cost. Any additional ESA, permitting, or subsurface 

investigations for borrow pit development outside of the project limits may be negotiated 

with the preferred Consultant during the design process. 

 

For reference, we are including a 2003 Granular Resource Study of Iqaluit which was 

completed by EBA Engineering and provides some insight on available granular 

resources. This study is included with this Addendum.  

 
Question 3.8 
Extension request: We would like to request an extension on the proposal 

submission to June 15. 

 
Response 3.8 
 

No, City is unable to grant an extension for the proposal submission beyond the current 

deadline.  
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Question 3.9 
 
In reference to Appendix A – Cost Submission Form, item 8 Phase VI Contract 
Administration, Site Inspection and Engineering Support Services, where should 
the costs for the Project Manager and Project Controls, Design Manager and 
Construction Manager be demonstrated?  Would the client prefer to provide 
additional line items to include these required services for all phases of the work? 
 
Response 3.9 
 

 During Phase VI, costs for the Project Manager  should be identified under Phase 

VI Item Number 8.5 of the cost submission form under “Design Consultant PM 

Support Services (assume 520 hrs./yr. x 3 seasons).  See revised Cost 

Submission Form in R3.1) 

 

 During Phase VI, costs for the Design Manager, should be identified under Phase 

VI Item Number 8.4 “Engineering Support Services (assume 400 hrs./yr. x 3 

seasons).  See revised Cost Submission Form in R3.1) 
 

 The positions and the level of efforts noted in the cost submission form by the City 

are deemed to be sufficient for the present need during construction. If the 

consultant considers that the additional positions/efforts is required, this can be 

negotiated ahead of construction and hourly rates can be priced in Appendix A 

Page 52 of 66 of the RFP. 
 

 At this time proponents are to respond to the overall pricing of the assignment 

using the provided Cost Submission format. 

 

 
Question 3.10 
In Appendix G – Supplementary Scope of Work, Section C – Geotechnical 
Investigation, is it the expectation that all boreholes will contain monitoring wells, 
if yes, how are thermistors to be installed in select boreholes? 
 
Response 3.10 
 
The consultant is expected to allow for the inclusion of monitoring wells in all boreholes 

as part of the geotechnical investigation. However, based on the consultant's 

recommendation and assessment of site conditions, it may be deemed unfeasible or 

unnecessary to install monitoring wells in certain locations. The decision to avoid the 

installation of monitoring wells in specific areas will be made after careful evaluation and 

consideration of the project requirements and site characteristics. 
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The City will rely on the consultant to advise appropriate numbers of monitoring wells and 

thermistors for the selected boreholes. 

 
Questions 3.11 
 
To develop a design that considers climate change does the City want a climate 
change resilience assessment as outlined in Part 3 of Infrastructure Canada's 
Climate Lens or a more general consideration?  
 
Response 3.11 
 
Yes, the City prefers to follow Infrastructure Canada's Climate Lens and conduct a climate 

change resilience assessment as outlined in Part 3 of the framework. City aims to ensure 

that the design considers climate change and incorporates appropriate measures to 

mitigate its effects. Please refer to Section 6.2 point 4 of Page 31 of 66 for additional 

environmental compliance requirements. 

 

 

 

Questions 3.12 
On page 32 of 66, one of the deliverables listed, #6, is “Results and reports of five 
(5) investigations in 6.1.2”.  It’s unclear what five investigations are being referred 
to.  Please clarify. 
 
Response 3.12 
 

Delete Section 6.2 Page 32 of 66 Deliverables Point 6. “Results and reports of five (5) 
investigations in 6.1.2.” 
 
Replace with “Results and reports of four (4) investigations mentioned in Section 6.1 Point 
4 i.e., Topographic Survey, Geotechnical Investigation, Environmental Site Assessment, 
Physical/Biological/Socio-Economic Environment Impact Assessment”  
 

 

Questions 3.13 
On page 35 of 66, one of the deliverables listed, #8 is “Class B Cost Estimate” as 
part of the 50% submission.  The same Class B Cost Estimate is also listed in the 
deliverables on page 37 as part of the 90% submission. 
 
Response 3.13 
 
Proponents are required to provide a Class D estimate at the 30% design stage in 
Phase 2, a Class C estimate at the 50% design stage in Phase 3, a Class B cost 
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estimate with the 90% design submission, and a Class A cost estimate with the 100% 
design submission. Please see the changes in the table below: 
 
  
 

Delete Replace with 
Section 6.2 Page 32 of 66 Deliverables Point 8 (Phase 
II – 30%). Class C cost estimate  

Class D cost Estimate 

Section 6.3 Page 35 of 66 Deliverables Point 8 (Phase 
III – 50%). Class B cost estimate 

Class C cost estimate 

 
Questions 3.14 
 

The RFP document Section 6. pages 27 through 47, Phase I Project Definition and 
Concept Design tasks do not align with Addendum No. 2, R2.1 Revision in Cost 
Submission Form. Per the RFP Document. Phase 1: Project Definition and Concept 
Design note the task of field investigations (Topographic, geotechnical, 
environmental site assessment, and physical/biological/socioeconomic impact 
assessment). However, the revised cost submission form notes these tasks as part 
of Phase II: Preliminary Design (30% Submission) 
 
Response 3.14 
  
Please note that the intention is to commence (and/or complete where possible) 
investigations in Phase I and complete reporting in Phase II. Please refer to the RFP 
Clarifications and Revision section to see changes in the Cost Submission form.   
 

 
Questions 3.15 
 

Task 9 on page 29 of the RFP anticipates a number of Technical Memorandums will 
be developed to support ongoing design activities throughout the design process. 
This task is included in Phase I Project Definition and Concept Design. Can the 
cost submission form be aligned with the consultant’s scope of work in the RFP to 
limit confusion and add clarity?   

 

Response 3.15 
 

The cost for the technical memorandum has been identified in Phase 1; however, it will 
be utilized throughout the design phase as the need arises. 
   

Questions 3.16 
Section 6 describes the scope of work and seems to follow the phases described 
(Section 6.1 is Phase I, 6.2 is Phase II…), however, the following don’t align with 
the flow and would like to understand how they should be addressed. 

a. Section 6.5 is not phase 5 and appears to have Tendring scope – 
should these tasks be captured in phase 5? 
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b. Section 6.6 is listed as phase 5 but the task number starts at 3, are 
there 2 tasks missing? 

c. Section 6.7 has numbering from 1 – 10 (Page 38 – 40), then 
numbering from 6 – 40 (Page 41 – 45), then numbering from 1 – 21 
(Page 45 – 46), should all cost/hours/tasks be captured in Phase 6? 

 
Response 3.16 
 

a.   Proponents are to provide costs for Tendering Support in Item number 7.0 
(identified as Phase V Tendering Support in the Cost Submission form), and 
the cost for the Regulatory and Permitting scope in Item number 6.0, 
Regulatory & Permitting, within the cost submission form. 

b.   There are no tasks missing. To maintain consistency and clarity, we suggest 
treating the tasks listed under Section 6.6 as Task 1 and Task 2, rather than 
using the numbers 3 and 4. This adjustment will align the task numbering 
with the intended sequencing of the phases. 

c.   All tasks listed in 6.7 should run sequentially from 1- 45. All tasks associated 
with Phase 6 should be captured in Item 8 of the Cost Submission form 
under “Phase VI - Contract Administration, Site Inspection and Engineering 

Support Services” 
 
 
Questions 3.17 
Seeing as the contract award was pushed by 2 weeks via addendum 2, do all 
milestones listed on page 47 of the original RFP get extended by 2 weeks? 
 

Response 3.17 
 
Milestones cannot be adjusted to accommodate the two-week extension to the RFP 
closing.  Please see the updated timeline accommodating revised kick off date, and 
scheduling future dates during normal work weeks. 
 

Milestone Date 

Project Kick-Off Meeting July 19, 2023 

Phase I: Project Definition and Concept Design September 15, 2023 

Phase II: Pre-Design (30% Submission) January 15, 2024 

NIRB Submission January 30, 2024 

Phase III: Preliminary Design (50% Submission) April 15, 2024 

NWB Submission June 14, 2024 

Phase IV: Final Design (90% Submission) January 20, 2025 
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Estimated NWB Regulatory Approval June 16, 2025 

Phase IV: Final Design (100% Submission)  July 15, 2025 

Contractor Award October 31, 2025 

Commence Construction Activities November 3, 2025 

Substantial Completion October 31, 2028 

Closeout/Warranty Phase October 31, 2029 

 
 
 
 
Questions 3.18 
There are 2 milestones that appear on a weekend, can you confirm what the 
correct date is? 

d. Estimated NWB Regulatory Approval (Jun 14 2025) - Saturday 
e. Commence Construction Activities (Nov 1, 2025) - Saturday 

 
Response 3.18 
 
Refer to revised table above in Response 3.17. 
 
 
Questions 3.19 
What are the work hours for the City of Iqaluit? 
 
Response 3.19 

 The working hours of the City of Iqaluit are from 9 AM to 5 PM, Monday to Friday. 
 
 
Questions 3.20 
What non-working days does the City of Iqaluit observe (Weekly, Statutory 
Holidays, Season Shutdowns,)? 
 
Response 3.20 
 
Generally, proponents are to refer to Nunavut statutory holidays.  See below link to 
2023 dates: 

https://gov.nu.ca/human-resources/information/public-service-holidays 

It is also noted that the City may have limited staff availability during Christmas Day and 
Boxing Day. 
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RFP CLARIFICATIONS AND REVISIONS 
 
 
R3.1 Revision in the cost submission form (Appendix A Cost Submission form 
Table A1) 
 

The cost submission form has been revised with additional / adjusted items.1.4, 1.5, 1.6 

and 1.7 as described below. 

 
Item Description Unit Total 

1.0 Phase I: Project Definition 

1.1 Project Execution Plan LS $ 

1.2 Concept Design Report LS $ 

1.3 Technical Memorandum (assume 10) LS $ 

1.4 Geotechnical Investigation (12 x boreholes @ 5 m depth LS $ 

1.5 Geotechnical investigation (12 boreholes @ 10 m depth) LS $ 

1.6 Onsite Topographic Survey LS $ 

1.7 Designs, Reports, Plans and Other Required Submissions LS $ 

1.8 Disbursements LS $ 

2.0 Phase II: Preliminary Design (30% Submission) 
 

2.1 Topographic Survey Report LS $ 

2.2 Geotechnical reporting LS $ 

2.3 Geotechnical Baseline Report for Construction LS $ 

2.4 Recommendations for additional Geotechnical Investigation (Cash 
Allowance) 

LS $100,000 

2.5 Environmental Site Assessment Phase 1 LS $ 

2.6 Environmental Site Assessment Phase 2 (Cash Allowance) LS $50,000 
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Item Description Unit Total 

2.7 Physical/Biological/Socio-Economic Environmental Impact Assessment LS $ 

2.8 Designs, Reports, Plans and Other required Submissions LS $ 

2.9 Preliminary Engineering for the Hydroelectric Generation Plant LS $ 

2.10 Detail Design for hydroelectric generation Plant (Provisional Item) PS $ 

2.11 Disbursements LS $ 

3.0 Phase III: Design Development (50% Submission) 
 

3.1 Designs, Reports, Plans and Other required Submissions LS $ 

3.2 Disbursements LS $ 

4.0 Phase IV: Final Design (90% Submission) 
 

4.1 Designs, Reports, Plans and Other required Submissions LS $ 

4.2 Disbursements LS $ 

5.0 Phase IV: Final Design (100% Submission) 
 

5.1 Designs, Reports, Plans and Other required Submissions LS $ 

5.2 Allowance for two (2) additional tender packages LS $ 

5.3 Disbursements LS $ 

6.0 Regulatory & Permitting 

6.1 Prepare Application for NPC/NIRB Screening LS $  

6.2 Permitting Support (Coordinate Review Comments from NIRB Review 
Process – 3 x iterations) 

LS $  

6.3 Prepare Application Update for NWB LS $  

6.4 Permitting Support (Coordinate Review Comments from Intervenors 
including NWB, DFO, CIRNAC, QIA, HTA, GN Environment etc. – 3 x 
Iterations) 

LS $  
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Item Description Unit Total 

6.5* Prepare Advanced Work Package Application for NPC/NIRB Screening 
(Potential Type B Application including NWB review comments (1 x 
Iteration). Advanced work package anticipated to include access road 
work. Refer RFP CLARIFICATIONS AND REVISIONS Item R2.2. 

LS $ 

6.6 Permitting Support (Not specified elsewhere) – (Cash Allowance) 
 

LS $150,000 

7.0 Phase V: Tendering Support 

7.1 Tender Support Services LS $ 

7.2 Allowance for two (2) additional tender packages LS $ 

8.0 Phase VI - Contract Administration, Site Inspection and Engineering Support Services 

8.1 Contract Administration (assume 1,560 hrs./yr. x 3 seasons and site 
based) 

LS $ 

8.2 Site Inspection Services (assume 3,120 hrs./yr. x 3 seasons and site 
based)  

LS $ 

8.3 Engineering Support Services (assume 200 hrs./yr. x 3 seasons and site 
based) 

LS $ 

8.4 Engineering Support Services (assume 400 hrs./yr. x 3 seasons) LS $ 

8.5 Design Consultant PM Support Services (assume 520 hrs./yr. x 3 
seasons) 

LS $ 

8.6 Reports, Plans and Other Required Submissions LS $ 

8.7 Disbursements LS $ 

9.0 Phase VII– Closeout Phase 

9.1 Closeout and Warranty/Deficiency Services 
(Assume 500 hours) 

LS $ 

9.2 Supply of As Built Records (including hardcopy and digital files) and 
Supply of Project History File 

LS $ 

9.2 Pre-Warranty Expiry Inspection (Subject to City confirmation) LS $ 

COST SUBMISSION SUMMARY 

A Sub-total (Pre-Contingency) $ 

B Contingency (5% of Sub-total (Item A) Above) $ 

C Sub-Total (Including Contingency – Item A + Item B): 
$ 

GST (5%): $ 

TOTAL: $ 
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Colliers Project Leaders                                                       Date: May 26, 2023 

Distribution: All Bidders 
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